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Chief Executive’'s Review

In the 2009-10 financial year the Department of the Premier and Cabinet (DPC) has continued to
demonstrate its credentials as a leader in policy development, uphold standards of excellence in service
delivery, genuinely engage with the community, across government and with the private sector and
provide support to the Premier and Cabinet to ensure South Australia thrives.

As a federated entity, our Department is rich in diversity. This diversity is a source of strength and is
evidenced by the number of achievements we have made over the financial year.

The State reform agenda has continued to gain momentum with policy priorities such as Skills for All
spearheading reform in the areas of vocational education and training and Adding Life to Years considering
older people as workers, consumers, neighbours, clients and citizens in the design and implementation of

policy.

DPC is again leading the update of South Australia’s Strategic Plan and undertaking a far reaching
consultation process in both metropolitan and regional SA. Social media is being used as an essential tool
to engage and encourage the community to have their say about a Plan for all of us.

The establishment of the SA Commission for Integrated Design and appointment of the Commissioner
brings prominence to the importance of design in the built form and fosters greater collaboration across
agencies and sectors around planning and development.

In 2009-10 South Australia hosted Thinkers in Residence, Laura Lee, Peggy Hora and Fred Hansen. Dr
Genevieve Bell’s report - Getting Connected, Staying Connected: Exploring South Australia’s Digital Futures
- was released identifying a set of strategic directions and opportunities for all South Australians with
regard to new digital technologies.

The 2009-10 financial year also saw the launch of ‘ShoGo’, a free website to assist performing arts
companies to reach a wider potential audience and the opening of the Biodiversity Gallery at the SA
Museum showcasing our State’s unique wildlife.

We have continued to develop South Australia’s higher education sector by bringing world class
universities to our State. The University City Project completed the initial Carnegie Mellon University, Heinz
Australia Agreement with the South Australian Government and drove the establishment of a subsequent
four year Agreement.

We also opened the University College London School of Energy and Resources Campus in Adelaide, and
called for the first intake of the Master of Science in Energy and Resources.

We presented the first report to Parliament on the implementation of Commissioner Mullighan’s APY
Lands Inquiry and facilitated the hand-back of land to the Maralinga Tjarutja people. This work, led by the
Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation Division (AARD), is closely aligned with national initiatives through the
Council of Australian Governments and its working groups. AARD continues to play a lead role in the
implementation of the National Remote Service Delivery strategy in Amata and Mimili.

The establishment of the Renewables SA Board and appointment of the Commissioner for Renewable
Energy has strengthened our ability to attract renewable energy investment to our State. We have also
supported projects climate change projects in Timor-Leste in partnership with the United Nations
Development Program. This project is a key example of DPC’s collaborative ethos being put into action and
of DPC'’s leadership in an international setting.

In the area of Industrial Relations, we continue to ensure safe, fair and productive working lives for all
South Australians. SafeWork SA took a leadership role in progressing national and state industrial relations
agendas and in the development of the national legislation and regulations under the Safe Work Australia’s
Strategic Issues Group on Occupational Health and Safety. Through SafeWork, South Australia
demonstrated leadership by becoming the first state to sign the Industrial Relations Inter-Government
Agreement with the Commonwealth. South Australia also developed the model referral provisions,
subsequently widely adopted in other states throughout Australia.
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Through a collaborative effort between Cabinet Office, Services Division and State Records, we have
implemented Cabinet’s decision to reduce the 20-year Freedom of Information (FOI) Act exemption for
Cabinet records to 10, and the Department has established a system to enable the release of Cabinet
documents that are over 10 years old under the FOI Act.

We have also implemented the Public Sector Act 2009, and revised the Public Sector Management Act 1995
to become the Public Sector (Honesty and Accountability) Act 1995. This is supported by the Code of Ethics
for the Public Sector, which guides and supports public sector employees in all of their professional
activities, strengthens public confidence in the public sector and sets out the standards of professional
conduct expected of every public sector employee.

The Public Sector Performance Commission finalised the High Performance Framework (HPF) and received
Cabinet endorsement. The HPF provides a common reference for organisational performance
management across the public sector and is essential to driving continual improvement.

These achievements would not have been possible without the efforts and commitment of DPC staff,
including to realising the vision articulated in Our Future Directions.

Chris Eccles
Chief Executive
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Our Achievements under Our Future Directions 2009-2014

Our Future Directions 2009-2014 articulates the goals we want to achieve as a department over the next
five years, and the capabilities we will need. It codifies our desired culture of a professional services
approach to conducting business. Reporting has been grouped under the main strategic objectives set out
in the plan

Policy Leadership

1. Lead the state’s long term policy development agenda

Led the State Reform Agenda project which resulted in the development of long-term policy
options in the 6 critical areas of: green industry development, supporting and engaging an ageing
population, up-skilling South Australians, focusing on early childhood development and creating a
more vibrant Adelaide.

Achieved excellent results for South Australia across a range of policy areas in the national reform
agenda through support for the Premier in the Council of Australian Governments (COAG) and the
Council for the Australian Federation (CAF) reform agenda, including: implementation of the
Seamless National Economy, Indigenous Reform Agenda, National Disability Strategy National Plan
to Reduce Violence Against Women and their Children, National Health Reform, International
Students Strategy, National Early Childhood and Skills reforms, Document Verification System and
the National Health and Hospitals Reform Agenda.

Established the Integrated Design Commission and appointed the inaugural Commissioner to bring

multi-disciplinary perspectives to respond to global and local challenges. Supported the
development of the Integrated Design Strategy for the City of Adelaide.

Appointed the Commissioner for Renewable Energy, having established the secretariat to support
the position and the Renewables SA Board. The Commissioner will advise the government on
policy and planning and ensure that the state’s leadership position in renewable energy translates
into benefits for the economy.

Led the development of the national Model Work Health and Safety Bill (WHS Bill)

Led the state’s industrial relations agenda to participate in the national industrial relations system
for the private sector in South Australia from 1 January 2010, being the first state to sign the
Industrial Relations Inter-Government Agreement with the Commonwealth. Developed the model
referral provisions subsequently used by four other states.

Began development of a South Australian Disability Blueprint and commenced community
engagement with people with disability and other stakeholders.

Created a new regulatory framework for the management of the permit system controlling access
to the APY Lands, in partnership with the APY Executive

Commissioned and published the required biennial independent review of progress towards
targets under South Australia’s climate change legislation, and the review of the legislation.

Commissioned the Green Grid Study to examine the business case for transmission and
generation investment to unlock further renewable energy resources in the state.

Commissioned an independent review of the Electricity Feed-in Scheme.
Supported establishment of the South Australian Centre for Geothermal Energy Research.
Commenced a revision of the Across Government Records Management Strategy.

Completed the initial Carnegie Mellon University, Heinz Australia Agreement with the South
Australian Government, and establishment of a second Agreement for a four-year period.
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Opened the University College London School of Energy and Resources (SERAus) Campus in
Adelaide, and called for the first intake of the Master of Science in Energy and Resources.

Adelaide Thinkers in Residence provided government with key policy options through
management of the residencies of:

e Dr Genevieve Bell (SA Connects: the many futures of our digital lives)
e Professor Laura Lee (Sustainable Futures: An integrated design strategy for South Australia.)

e Judge Peggy Fulton Hora [retired] (Smart Justice: a 21st Century Approach to Justice & Public
Safety)

and by hosting the Thinker’s Return event: ‘Think Again! Time to recover or time to change?"

Drive integration and coordination of policy, strategy and implementation across government

Provided state leadership in national COAG reform processes and forums, such as climate change
adaptation, city urban development, indigenous reform, infrastructure planning frameworks and
water management reform.

Coordinated and prepared South Australia’s submissions to national parliamentary inquiries and
Productivity Commission inquiries on policies including parallel importation of books, the
contribution of the not-for profit sector and the review of the Report on Government Service
Provision.

Advocated for and provided advice to the COAG Reform Council and the Steering Committee for
the Report on Government Services on implementation of the Intergovernmental Agreement on
Federal Financial Relations.

Established a system to oversee the implementation of COAG commitments through a chief
executive level COAG Implementation and Evaluation Group (CIREG), engaging agencies with this
process through a network of Policy Reference Groups.

Identified alighment between National Agreements and related National Partnerships with South
Australia’s Strategic Plan and recommended ways to bring these closer during the 2010 update of
the Strategic Plan.

Provided advice to the Premier, Treasurer and Cabinet on the implications of the Henry Tax
Review and the subsequent Commonwealth Government response.

Coordinated a high level Capital City Steering group (CCSSG), to develop strategies aimed at
reducing crimes against persons and antisocial behaviour in the Adelaide CBD.

Organised a successful Senior Management Council visit to the APY Lands, resulting in
strengthened partnerships and commitment to improve living standards in remote communities.

Developed and implemented the Remote Service Delivery National Partnership (RSD NP) within
the two South Australian priority remote Aboriginal communities of Amata and Mimili on the
Anangu Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara (APY) Lands to improve remote service delivery, and
appointed a State Coordinator-General for Remote Aboriginal Services to coordinate various
COAG reforms.

With the Commonwealth Government and the two communities, completed Local
Implementation Plans containing strategies and actions for both communities by 30 June 2010,
the first of 29 RSD sites around Australia to do so.

Developed an Indigenous Integrated Implementation Plan linked to the National Indigenous
Reform Agreement to meet Closing the Gap targets.

Coordinated the Indigenous Economic Participation National Partnership Agreement, which
identified 52 additional State Government jobs for Aboriginal people.

Supported the development of the National Strategy for Food Security in Remote Indigenous
Communities for COAG.
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Completed a survey of 200 state and local government agency’s records management practices
against the benchmarks in the state’s Adequate Records Management Standard.

Facilitated the delivery of Stage 3 of the North Terrace Redevelopment through the Capital City
Committee.

Completed the Economic Development Board’s review into the future of the Playford Centre.

Completed the redevelopment of the heritage-listed Old Stock Exchange Building as the “Science
Exchange”, housing the Royal Institution of Australia (RiAus) and the Australian Science Media
Centre.

Assisted the Australian Science Media Centre (AusSMC) to set up an international network of
science media centres.

Negotiated enterprise bargaining agreements covering the public sector workforce (including the
SA Wages Parity Salaried Enterprise Agreement) and provided oversight in relation to other public
sector enterprise bargaining.

Under the National Strategy on Energy Efficiency convened a national workshop on co-generation,
tri-generation and other distributed generation technologies in collaboration with the SA
Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure and the NSW Government.

Achievements against South Australian Strategic Plan targets being led by the department

Target 1.4 Industrial Relations: Achieve the lowest number of working days lost per thousand
employees of any state in Australia by 2014.

Achieved the lowest rate of working days lost for all Australian states in the December 2009 and
March 2010 quarters.

South Australia, since 1 January 2010, has participated in the national industrial relations system.
All South Australian private sector employers and employees are covered by the new national
system.

Appointed industrial relations inspectors under Federal legislation (in addition to their powers
under state laws) to help deliver education and compliance services in the national industrial
relations system.

Finalised 1028 industrial relations investigations.

Target 2.11 Greater safety at work: Achieve the nationally agreed target of 40% reduction in injury
by 2012.

Achieved a 31.7% reduction in the rate of injury reported in South Australia in September 2009
(injuries to September 2008), which is on track to achieve the targeted 40% reduction in injury
ahead of 2012.

Developed national mine safety regulations through a discussion paper that formed the basis for
the national model.

Continued to promote safety culture in South Australian workplaces through the ‘Look after your
workmates’ media campaign.

Presented Safe Work Month in October 2009, which delivered over 250 events to more than 5500
people and culminated in the Safe Work Awards. Three South Australian Safe Work Award
winners went on to achieve national Safe Work Award honours.

Investigated 4273 occupational health, safety and welfare (OHSW) matters, and recorded 23 974
OHSW workplace intervention activities.
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Target 2.12 Work-life Balance: Improve the quality of life of all South Australians through
maintenance of a healthy work-life balance.

e Achieved a score of 42.7 on the 2010 Australian Work and Life Index (AWALI) report against a less
favourable national average score of 43.3, continuing the trend of improved satisfaction with
Work Life Balance in this state

e South Australia’s Work Life Balance Advisory Committee was established on 1 February 2010 to
drive the ongoing work life balance program and provide advice on key projects.

e Developed an Approved Code of Practice for Working Hours to commence operation on 1 July
2010.

Target 3.5 State Greenhouse gas emissions reduction: Achieve the Kyoto target by limiting the
state’s greenhouse gas emissions to 108% of 1990 levels during 2008-2012, as a first step towards
reducing emissions by 60% of 1990 levels by 2050.

e South Australia’s greenhouse gas emissions reduced from 33 megatonnes (Mt) of carbon dioxide
equivalent (CO2-e) in 1990 to 32 Mt CO2-e in 2008 (latest available data) due to changes in
agriculture and land use practice.

e Increased renewable energy production helping to reduce the greenhouse gas intensity of
electricity consumed in South Australia by 22% since 2000.

Target 3.7 Ecological footprint: Reduce South Australia’s ecological footprint by 30% by 2050.
e No new data has become available since the 2006 South Australian Strategic Progress Report.

e A 30% reduction in the ecological footprint is estimated to be the approximate impact of achieving
the 60% greenhouse emissions reduction target (Target 3.5).

Target 4.2 Film Industry: Double the number of feature films produced in South Australia by 2014.

e Supported the making of five films in 2009-10. With a cumulative total of 40 this exceeds the
progressive target of 30.3.

e Commenced construction of the Adelaide Film and Screen Centre at Glenside in February 2010.

e Invested $500 000 in Ampco Films for a $20m feature film production in China aimed at bringing
post-production work back to South Australia.

Target 4.3 Cultural Engagement — Institutions: Increase the number of attendances at South
Australia’s cultural institutions by 20% by 2014.

e Attendances of 2 642 823 in 2009-10 were slightly below the target of 2 690 266.

e  Government committed $500 000 in 2010-11 increasing to $1 million from 2012-13 for the Major
Exhibitions Fund to secure major national or international exhibitions and support the creation
and curating of new, innovative arts for exhibition in South Australia. Arts SA administers this
Fund of which a significant portion will be allocated to attracting a calendar of major exhibitions to
boost attendances in the coming years.

e  Opened the new Biodiversity Gallery at the South Australian Museum on 11 February 2010.

e Commenced START at the Gallery, a new program for children and families at the Art Gallery of
South Australia, with the Balnaves Foundation support.

Target 4.4 Cultural Engagement — arts activities: Increase the number of attendances at selected arts
activities by 40% by 2014.

e This target is achieved. As of 2009-10 it is 66% ahead of the target of 4 916 991. The 2009-10
attendances totalled 8 151 189, a 9% increase from 7 505 557 attendances in 2008-09.

e Facilitated the 2009 ‘Spirit Festival’ — South Australia’s only festival specifically showcasing
Aboriginal art and culture.
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e Hosted an outstanding program of arts events including the 50" anniversary Adelaide Festival of
Arts, the Adelaide Fringe, the Australian Performing Arts Market and seasons of theatre, opera,
orchestral and chamber music.

e Signed a tripartite Memorandum of Understanding between Department of Education and
Children’s Services, the Australia Council for the Arts and the SA Government to link organisations
and schools to show students the artistic process through the Creative Education Partnership:
Artist in Residence Initiative.

Target 5.7 Aboriginal Leadership: Increase the number of Aboriginal South Australians participating
in community leadership and in community leadership development programs.

e Increased the number of Aboriginal people serving on government boards and committees to 134
in 2009-10 from 112 in 2008-9.

e Ran leadership development programs attended by 170 Aboriginal people.
Target 6.1 Aboriginal Wellbeing: Improve the overall wellbeing of Aboriginal South Australians.

e Produced a baseline report for a suite of 21 indicators, to be used to track changes in Aboriginal
wellbeing (October 2009). The progress report in May 2010 had 13 of the 21 indicators showing
positive movement.

e Developed a place-based policy response to closing the gap in disadvantage for Aboriginal people
living in urban and regional South Australia.

e Improved the engagement and retention of Aboriginal students in Year 10 to 12 through the
expansion of the South Australian Aboriginal Sports Training Academy, now offered in 11 school
sites across the state. Three students successfully completed SACE Year 12 in 2009 and there are
177 students enrolled in the 2010 school year.

e Worked in partnership with the Alcohol Education and Rehabilitation Foundation to improve the
health and wellbeing of those young Aboriginal people engaged in or at risk of substance misuse.
Funded ‘Wiltanendi’, an intensive case management model designed to respond to the drug use
amongst young Aboriginal people in the Adelaide metropolitan area; and ‘Celebrating Healthy
Communities’ (APY Lands) Project, using the arts to address substance misuse amongst young
Anangu on the APY Lands.

e Improved post-school outcomes for young people with disability and mental health issues through
the Choices and Connections program.

Target 6.5 Economic Disadvantage - reduce the percentage of South Australians receiving
government benefits (excluding age pensions) as their major income source to below the Australian
average by 2014.

e Provided support to families experiencing social and economic disadvantage through the ‘Building
Family Opportunities’ program in Port Augusta, Adelaide’s Northern suburbs, and Port
Adelaide-Enfield local government Areas. This provided joined-up support to facilitate
participation in employment, education and training, and developed and implemented a plan of
action for community-based employment initiatives for disadvantaged job seekers.

6.6 Homelessness - halve the number of 'rough sleepers' in South Australia by 2010 and maintain
thereafter.

e Rough Sleeper counts in the Adelaide inner city held in May 2010 showed the number of people
counted rough sleeping in the inner city has decreased by over 50% since the first count in June
2007.

e Implemented the first regional rough sleeper count in the Riverland in November 2009 and
recorded 26 people rough sleeping compared to the 103 at the time of the 2006 Census
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Led the development of an across-government reporting framework to monitor the impact of
homeless reduction activities to meet SASP and COAG homelessness reduction targets. The 2006
Census shows South Australia achieved a 5.5% reduction in rough sleeper homelessness compared
to 2001, in an environment of a national average increase of 15.5% in rough sleeper data around
Australia.

Expanded integrated mainstream (housing, health, disability) and homeless services to the
Riverland and Ceduna regions for people sleeping rough, and for other homeless people with
complex needs.

Endorsed a new policy focus in Aboriginal Homelessness reduction.

Target 6.24 Aboriginal Employees: Increase the participation of Aboriginal people in the South
Australian public sector spread across all classifications and agencies to 2% by 2010, and maintain or
better those levels through to 2014.

Increased Aboriginal public sector employment to 1521 in June 2009, representing 1.51% of the
State Government’s workforce, with the target set at 2% for June 2010 (figures not yet available).

Undertook coordination of the first round of all agency reporting on the implementation of
Cultural Inclusion Framework.
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Customer Focus

1. Ensure an effective and efficient cabinet system of government

Implemented the Electronic Cabinet Online system to improve the processing of Cabinet business
across government and negotiated a Service Level Agreement to support it.

Led a review of governance arrangements across various committees providing advice to Cabinet
on water management and Murray River policy matters, resulting in a new approach to such
arrangements under the incoming government.

Introduced arrangements to support the ten year rule for the release of Cabinet documents.

Provided ongoing high quality advice to the Premier in his capacity as the Chair of Cabinet and the
Chief Executive on key policy matters considered through the Cabinet process.

2. Deliver outstanding service to our customers

Supported the Premier in his role as leader of the government by ensuring the handling of all
matters pertaining to the March 2010 State election was efficient and had due regard to legal
requirements and constitutional conventions

Completed a survey of customers of State Records’ Research Centres with an overall satisfaction
rating of 92%.

Completed 14 capital projects for primary essential services infrastructure in the Aboriginal Lands
with expenditure of $2.9 million.

Produced the first Annual Report outlining the government’s response to, and progress in
implementing the recommendations of the Commission of Inquiry’s report into Child Sexual Abuse
on the APY Lands (Mullighan Inquiry).

Facilitated a ceremony at Maralinga Village to mark the hand back of Section 400 to the Maralinga
Tjarutja traditional owners.

In conjunction with Department of Transport Energy and Infrastructure, contracted to a proven
service provider to cost-effectively improve road grading across the APY lands, dramatically
reducing road complaints

Developed the APY Waste Management Priorities and Implementation Plan in partnership with
Zero Waste SA and APY communities.

Completed an air-conditioning upgrade at the Art Gallery of South Australia.
Commenced the 2010 Regional Centre of Culture program at Murray Bridge.

Implemented a capability development program targeting injury prevention and injury
management practitioners to achieve nationally accredited qualifications in government.

Achieved a response time of less than three minutes for 85% of telephone calls to the SafeWork
SA Help Centre.

Completed the monitoring and reporting of the Safety in the Public Sector 2007-2010 Strategy.

Supported a Youth Environment Program sponsored by the United Nations Development Program
in Timor Leste.

Revised the operational governance and contract management of the whole of government salary
sacrifice arrangements.

Developed opportunities for international students to undertake postgraduate programs by
coursework and research in South Australian local and international universities.
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Engage genuinely with our stakeholders

e  Worked with the Community Engagement Board and other stakeholders to prepare for the 2010
community consultation around South Australia's Strategic Plan (SASP).

e Jointly developed, with key stakeholders, an integrated reporting and evaluation framework to
ensure that South Australia is well positioned to meet its commitments under COAG and SASP.

e Expanded the South Australian Strategic Plan’s Alliance program, bringing the current total to
52 alliance members.

® Through collaboration with relevant agencies, achieved better performance in comparison to
other state and territory jurisdictions in the delivery of outcomes associated with the National
Partnership on the Seamless National Economy.

e Undertook consultation with a range of stakeholders including representatives from the records
management industry, portfolio departments, the Privacy Committee and State Records Council
on a range of issues including: the review of the records disposal regime in SA; standards and
guidelines for records management, FOI and information privacy; and nationally consistent
privacy legislation.

e Received a Business — Higher Education Round Table Award in the Best Community Engagement
category in recognition of our partnership in the Managing in Two Worlds governance training
program.

e Engaged key industry stakeholders through the consultative framework consisting of the Industrial
Relations Advisory Committee, SafeWork SA Advisory Committee, Asbestos Advisory Committee,
Mining and Quarrying OHS Committee, and Work Life Balance Advisory Committee.

e Developed and implemented sector agreements in 2009-10 with further key sectors including:
e Adelaide Brighton Cement Ltd, signed August 2009
e The South Australian university sector, October 2009
e SA Water, signed 16 February 2010
e Technology Industry Association, signed 16 February 2010
e Jeffries Group, signed 16 February 2010
e Adelaide City Council

e Included the key leadership group of senior Aboriginal people in consultation for the reviews of
the Aboriginal Lands Trust Act 1966 and the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1988.

e Conducted three Introduction to Corporate Governance workshops in Adelaide, Ceduna and
Mount Gambier attended by 67 members or staff of Aboriginal organisations.

e Commenced a project in cooperation with Narungga heritage groups to document and verify up to
150 Aboriginal heritage sites and objects on the Yorke Peninsula.

e  Worked with the Yappala Aboriginal community on an innovative approach to documenting
stories and songs through use of multi-media and GIS technology.

e Contributed to and participated in a number of community based and industry action groups such
as the West End Reference Group and Renew Adelaide, Smart Grid forums, and the South
Australian Government Working Group for Electric Vehicles.

e Hosted two forums:
e ‘Adelaide’s Role in the 30 Year Plan for Greater Adelaide’ on 16 October 2009
e ‘Adelaide as a Sustainable City’ on 5 November 2009.

e Expanded climate change awareness by supporting the Green Hubs Behaviour Change Program
and the Community Engagement Program through the Conservation Council of South Australia.

e Consulted with South Australian and Italian higher education and research sector and government
agencies.
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e Established a diplomatic visits reference group with membership from DTED and Multicultural SA.
Target list of priority visits for 2010 established and actioned.
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System Improvement

1. Enable staff through high quality and contemporary infrastructure, systems and processes

Piloted the Public Sector Performance Commission’s High Performance Framework to assess the
department. From this review, a program of organisational improvement initiatives commenced.

Conducted a staff survey, as part of the High Performance Framework. Feedback sessions for
divisions were undertaken to analyse results and develop plans to address emergent issues.

Strengthened the protection and preservation of Aboriginal culture and heritage through
improved administration of the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1988.

Developed an Asset Management Plan for primary essential services infrastructure to assist with
the quantification of assets owned by the Aboriginal Land Holding Authorities.

Established a mentoring program for staff at Arts SA to broaden experience across the
organisation and within DPC.

Completed the business case for the procurement of a new Arts Grants Management System.

Upgraded SafeWork SA’s InfoNET system with new business functionality, including online
payments and processing of construction industry White Card by Registered Training Providers.

Undertook a Functional Review of Services Division in 2009 and implemented a majority of the
recommendations in 2010.

Designed and commenced implementation of a new Business Reporting System to streamline
reporting processes, reduce duplication of effort and improve information flow to managers.

Established ‘Careers in the Department of the Premier and Cabinet’ website to encourage better
targeted recruitment.

Completed the WorkCover Evaluation against the Performance Standards, achieving a rating of
Level 1C: a fully conforming, but immature, system.

Developed new or upgraded websites for the Capital City Committee, Ethical Standards and
Professional Integrity, Adelaide Thinkers in Residence and Public Sector Workforce Relations

Piloted the use of social media software tools to improve collaboration and the sharing of
information.

Reduced the number of financial ledgers the department used from three to two as part of
improving the financial management of the department.

Achieved zero waste to landfill in the State Administration Centre by working with recycling
contractors.

Reviewed and revised policies impacted by the SA Public Sector Act 2009.

Implemented early intervention strategies which achieved a significant turnaround in reducing
claims for psychological injuries from six in 2008-09 to zero in 2009-10, with no new claims .

Upgraded the functionality of the Whole of Government workers compensation claims
management database system.

Developed and piloted an across government system for reporting hazards and incidents.

Implemented a ‘People Strategy’ featuring:
e a ‘Fostering Cultural Diversity’ program
e an extensive OHS training program
e ascorecard for OHS performance
e anew online induction program and a system to capture data relating to staff turnover
e anonline corporate training calendar.
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Reporting for Entities supported by the Department of the
Premier and Cabinet

In this section
®  Office for Ethical Standards and Professional Integrity
®  Public Sector Performance Commission
® Agent General

® National Competition Commissioner
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Office for Ethical Standards and Professional Integrity

The role of the Office for Ethical Standards and Professional Integrity is to provide oversight and leadership
for the South Australian public sector by promoting principles and ethics which govern the operation of the
public sector as well as establishing a cohesive public sector and a standardised employment framework.

Highlights include:

® Achieved significant legislative change through the implementation of the Public Sector Act 2009
on 1 February 2010 and amendment of the Public Sector Management Act 1995 to become the
Public Sector (Honesty and Accountability) Act 1995.

® Developed and implemented the Code of Ethics for the Public Sector to guide and support public
sector employees in all of their professional activities, strengthen public confidence in the public
sector and to set out the standards of professional conduct expected of every public sector
employee.

® Fostered a modern, streamlined and high performing public sector through the development of
draft Determinations and Guidelines to promote the Objects and Principles of the Public Sector
Act 2009.

® Reviewed the data collected on the characteristics of the public sector in the Workforce
Information Collection to enable accountability, performance measurement and evidenced-based
decision making, and to make the collection consistent with the new Public Sector Act 2009.

Held the Premier’s Award scheme and ceremony for a third year with increased participation and
interest. High standard South Australia’s Strategic Plan work initiatives were recognised through
the awards.

® Showecased the diverse range of services, initiatives and innovations delivered to the community
by the South Australian Public sector through Public Sector Week 2009.

South Australian Strategic Plan targets for which ESPI has specific responsibility:

Target 1.7 Performance in the Public Sector — customer and client satisfaction with government services:
Increase the satisfaction of South Australians with government services by 10% by 2010 maintaining or
exceeding that level of satisfaction thereafter.

e Selected and introduced the Canadian Common Measurement Tool as the basis for a regime of
customer satisfaction surveys, to provide consistent and comparable service-wide data.

Target 6.23 Women: Have women comprising half of the public sector employees in the executive levels
(including chief executives) by 2014.

e Increased the number of women in executive positions by 2.3% over the past year. South Australia
now leads all Australian jurisdictions with 38.7% of executives being women.

e Redeveloped aspects of the ESPI website as a means of communicating the nature of progress to
the wider public sector and community, and as a communication tool for the Champions Group.
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Public Sector Performance Commission

The Public Sector Performance Commission (PSPC) ensures that South Australians benefit from a high
performing public sector regarded as amongst the best of its kind. The PSPC works to provide the building
blocks and momentum to support collaboration across agencies and within the community, through
business, education, and national and local government.

Highlights include:

e The High Performance Framework was completed to provide a common reference for organisational
performance management across the public sector.

e  Pilot review programs that utilise the High Performance Framework were rolled out in selected
agencies to identify recommendations for improvement in service and program effectiveness and
efficiency.

e The inaugural SAES induction program, conducted in November/ December 2009 for new-to-
government executives from across the South Australian public sector. It was delivered in partnership
with the academic sector, other training providers and through across-government collaboration.

e 509 eligible executives are now members of the SAES (as at 31 March 2010). With the proclamation of
the Public Sector Act 2009, on 1 February 2010, the total pool of potential SAES members across the
wider public sector has now increased by over 1000 employees. Arrangements for transition of these
employees to the SAES have been considered, in conjunction with the drafting of a SAES Charter.

e The PSPC/ ANZSOG ‘Challenging the Public Sector’ program of seminars and workshops was delivered
to over 2000 attendees by a cross section of leading international academics and practitioners in
collaboration with South Australian public sector executives.

e The Leading Practice Seminars were delivered to over 400 public sector attendees highlighting
progressive and innovative programs throughout the South Australian public sector.

e Coordinated the first tranche of five cross-government Action Teams, which have now completed their
work and provided host agencies with an on-going program of action. The Action Teams worked on
executive leadership, productivity and performance, innovation, citizen centric government and
strengthening families.

e Commissioned and supported a review of recruitment and retention in the South Australian
Government to identify opportunities for efficiencies and cost savings. The Review’s recommendations
were intended to support the implementation of the Public Sector Act 2009, and inform the work of
the Sustainable Budget Commission.
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Agent General

In 2009-10, the Agent-General contributed towards the attainment of key objectives within South
Australia’s Strategic Plan with a particular emphasis on raising Adelaide and South Australia’s international
profile in support of trade, investment, migration, international education and tourism targets.

With ongoing economic uncertainty in the United Kingdom and much of Europe, interest in South Australia
as an investment destination continued to grow. The office assisted a number of companies in their
consideration of South Australia as an investment destination including in the renewable energy, cleantech
and defence sectors. A special effort was put into promoting South Australia’s thriving defence sector and
this culminated in December 2009 with a major briefing of potential investors at Australia House in
partnership with Defence SA. The Office also continued its practice of maintaining high value connections
with key European defence organisations and, in partnership with the Chair of the South Australian
Economic Development Board hosted a South Australian-focussed investment dinner as part of the G’'Day
UK program.

In addition to investment, the Office continued to work on a portfolio basis, covering wine, migration and
international education.

The wine portfolio focused on increasing consumer awareness of South Australian regional names while
working with trade avenues to increase the South Australian presence and volume of South Australian
brands in the United Kingdom. This was also supported by events aimed at raising the profile of South
Australia’s wine regions. Projects that supported these objectives included: a Decanter magazine
supplement (April edition) with global circulation of 46 000; an online competition with retailer ‘Naked
Wines’, where contestants had the opportunity to become a winemaker for a week; a dinner in partnership
with the Australian First Families of Wine to promote South Australian wine with key industry stakeholders
in Europe; and, ensuring strong representation at trade fairs in London and Germany. The work of the
Office in the wine portfolio contributed to Wine Australia’s Directions to 2025 and South Australia’s
Strategic Plan (T1.14).

The United Kingdom remains a top destination for South Australian wine, although the global financial
crisis has hit this mature market hard. New competition and price pressure are additional challenges to the
niche that Australian wine has established over the last 15 years although South Australia continues to
perform well as a category leader with innovations in both winery and finished product. This strength was
a focus of the media messaging during the 2009-10 year.

The migration portfolio undertook a variety of activities to support South Australia’s Strategic Plan targets
T1.24 and T1.22, which aim to increase net overseas migration gain and contribute to the state’s targeted
population increase to 2 million by 2050. In 2009-10, the Office delivered 15 migration seminars and
participated in 19 expos throughout the United Kingdom and Ireland. This activity was supported with the
production of targeted print and online advertising as well as other migration events targeted at specific
skills, including online events. The Office worked closely with recruitment agencies and South Australian
employers such as SA Police, to promote and facilitate recruitment in the United Kingdom. An eight-week
Working Holiday campaign was also launched in June 2010 in conjunction with the South Australian
Tourism Commission and STA Travel (UK), to attract more working holidaymakers to South Australia who
might potentially return as migrants. In addition, a public relations campaign highlighting South Australia’s
unique and exciting job opportunities has been developed for commencement in late July 2010 to increase
interest and awareness from the working holiday market. So far the STA Travel promotion has enjoyed
positive coverage and final results are expected early August once both campaigns have finished.

During 2009-10 the international education portfolio continued to support the attainment of the state’s
vision as Australia’s Learning City. The Office played a significant role in the attraction and establishment
of the University College London’s Australian campus and, separately, the Royal Institution of Australia,
both to Adelaide. The Office also pursued avenues to promote the state’s education opportunities directly
to consumers and this was especially so in targeting the state’s skills shortage in engineering professions.
The Office promoted study opportunities in Adelaide through a series of Science, Engineering and
Technology career fairs at some of the United Kingdom’s top universities and delivered a number of
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consumer events under the ‘Study Adelaide’ brand including in collaboration with its migration objectives.
In April 2010 the Office in collaboration with Education Adelaide launched a ‘British Brain Drain’ campaign
targeting British students ‘looking to escape the post-study employment lottery, economic hardship and
the miserable UK weather’. The campaign produced a significant amount of radio, print (both national and
regional) and online coverage and helped lift the state’s prospects of achieving South Australia’s Strategic
Plan target T1.16.

A website dedicated to the Government of South Australia’s United Kingdom and European operations was
developed and launched on 12 March 2010. The objective was to increase awareness and interest in South
Australia by providing a simple, effective platform to communicate with business contacts and target
audiences relevant to the office portfolios and the South Australian Tourism Commission.

In addition to the above, the Office supported a range of senior governmental visits, delegations and small
South Australian companies in the provision of market analysis and intelligence. This included the annual
Premier’s reception at Australia House with around 300 South Australians to promote their return to the
state.

Bill Muirhead
Agent General for South Australia (London)
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Competition Commissioner

The following information is provided in accordance with a requirement in section 21 of the Government
Business Enterprises (Competition) Act 1996 (the Act) for the Chief Executive of the Department of the
Premier and Cabinet to report annually on investigations carried out by the Competition Commissioner.

The Competitive Neutrality Complaints secretariat received one formal complaint during 2009-10. The
secretariat has referred the complaint to the Department for Water for investigation in the first instance.
The complaint has not been referred to the Competition Commissioner.

The Act requires a summary of the Competition Commissioner’s report of any investigation of a complaint
be made available to the public. Summaries of previous complaints referred to the Competition
Commissioner and additional information on competitive neutrality implementation in government
business activities are available on the Department of the Premier and Cabinet website at

http://www.premcab.sa.gov.au/dpc/publications competition documents.html#comp neutrality

Report of the Competition Commissioner

The Competition Commissioner is considered to be an agent or instrumentality of the Crown, and is
required to comply with the obligations imposed by the Public Sector Act 2009 (the PS Act) on public sector
agencies. These obligations are to meet the general public sector objectives of the Act and to submit an
annual report as required by section 12 of the Act. For convenience, the Annual Report for 2009-10 is
presented as part of the Annual Report of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

Competition Commissioners are appointed by the Governor pursuant to section 5 of the Government
Business Enterprises (Competition) Act 1996 (the Competition Act). A Commissioner may be appointed to
investigate the prices charged by declared government business enterprises (under section 9) or to
investigate competitive neutrality complaints referred to him or her by the Premier and to report on the
investigations (sections 18 and 19). The Competition Act specifies the powers and duties of a
Commissioner in both cases.

The Public Sector Regulations 2010 lists the information that the annual report must contain. Some of the
information required is not relevant to an individual person appointed to undertake specific investigations.
Some of the required information, for example, on fraud and financial performance is already provided
elsewhere in the Annual Report of the department.

| am the only Commissioner appointed under the Competition Act in 2009-10, currently until 30 June 2010,
under the terms and conditions approved by Cabinet. | was appointed to carry out such investigations into
infringements on the principles of competitive neutrality as the Premier may from time to time direct. The
terms include that | am not an employee of the state or any governmental department or agency.

Section 19 of the Competition Act gives me the power to delegate any aspect of the investigation of a
competitive neutrality complaint to another person.

There were no competitive neutrality complaints referred to me for investigation during my term in 2009-
10.

John Carey
Competition Commissioner 1 April 2009 — 30 June 2010
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Our People

EMPLOYEE NUMBERS, GENDER AND STATUS

Total Number of Employees

Persons 1244

FTEs 1158.66
Gender % Persons % FTEs
Male 38.59 40.12
Female 61.41 59.88

Number of Persons During the 09-10 Financial Year
Separated from the agency 214
Recruited to the agency 190

Number of Persons at 30 June 2010
On Leave without Pay 44

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY SALARY BRACKET

Salary Bracket Male Female Total

$0-549 199 61 138 199
$49 200 - $62 499 99 265 364
$62 500 - $80 099 159 197 356
$80 100 - $100 999 109 123 232
$101 000+ 52 41 93
TOTAL 480 764 1244

Note: Salary details relate to pre-tax income excluding super and FBT. Non-executive
employees on salary sacrifice arrangements are shown as pre-sacrifice values.
Executive employees are shown as the value of the financial benefits component of
their Total Remuneration Package Value excluding super. Non-financial benefits and
allowances are excluded for all employees. The salary brackets have been constructed
as an approximation for the level of responsibility, and are based on the current
remuneration structures of the PSM Act Administrative Services Stream with
consideration of the Operational, Professional, Technical and Executive Streams.
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STATUS OF EMPLOYEES IN CURRENT POSITION

Short-Term

Long-Term

Other

Leave
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FTEs Ongoing Contract Contract (Casual) Uiz
Male 341.71 55.2 65.61 2.3 464.82
Female 517.68 87.4 82.6 6.16 693.84
TOTAL 859.39 142.6 148.21 8.46 1158.66
. Short-Term Long-Term Other
PERSONS Ongoing Contract Contract (Casual) Uiz
Male 349 57 68 6 480
Female 564 94 87 19 764
TOTAL 913 151 155 25 1244
EXECUTIVES BY GENDER, CLASSIFICATION AND STATUS
Ongoin Term Tenured Term Total
going Untenured
Classificatio Mal Femal Male  Femal Mal Femal Mal Fem Tot
n e e e e e e ale al
EXECOA 0 0 0 0 1 2 1 2 3
EXECOB 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 2
EXECOC 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
EXECOE 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1
EXECOF 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 2
SAES1 0 0 0 0 16 23 16 23 39
SAES2 0 0 0 0 7 7 7 7 14
Total 0 0 0 0 27 35 27 35 62
AVERAGE DAYS LEAVE PER FULL TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEE
Leave Type
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
Sick Leave 6.5 7.7 7.6 7.4
Family Carers’ Leave 0.6 0.8 0.9 0.9
Miscellaneous Special 06 06 0.9 0.8



ABORIGINAL AND/OR TORRES STRAIT ISLANDER EMPLOYEES

IR PO St bongmar T
S0 - 549 199 11 199 5.5 2.0
$49 200 - $62 499 11 364 3.0 2.0
$62 500- $80 099 8 356 2.5 2.0
$80 100 - $100 999 6 232 2.6 2.0
$101 000+ 2 93 2.2 2.0
TOTAL 38 1244 3.1 2.0

* Target from South Australia Strategic Plan — Target 6.24

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY AGE BRACKET BY GENDER

2010
Age Bracket Male Female Total % of Total BWorkforce*
enchmark
%

15-19 2 4 6 0.48 6.1%
20-24 10 28 38 3.05 10.6%
25-29 36 78 114 9.16 10.5%
30-34 39 104 143 11.5 9.4%
35-39 35 98 133 10.69 11.2%
40-44 64 88 152 12.22 11.1%
45-49 60 94 154 12.38 12.2%
50-54 84 118 202 16.24 11.0%
55-59 83 101 184 14.79 9.2%
60-64 51 47 98 7.88 6.0%
65+ 16 4 20 1.61 2.9%
TOTAL 480 764 1244 100 100

*Source: Australian Bureau of Statistics Australian Demographic Statistics, 6291.0.55.001 Labour Force
Status (ST LM8) by sex, age, state, marital status — employed — total from Dec78 Supertable, South Australia
at May 2010.

CULTURAL AND LINGUISTIC DIVERSITY

SA
Male Female Total % Agency Community
*
Number of employees born 68 37 155 12.46 0.3
overseas
Number of employees who speak
language(s) other than English at 14 28 42 3.38 16.6

home

*Benchmarks from ABS Publication Basic Community Profile (SA) Cat No. 2001.0, 2006 census.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES (ACCORDING TO COMMONWEALTH DDA DEFINITION)

Male Female Total % of Agency
11 17 28 2.3

DOCUMENTED REVIEW OF INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

The TCM system was ‘turned off’ in February 2010, therefore no performance management data has
been centrally recorded since this time.

On advice from DPC HR Consultants, Business Units have been undertaking performance conversations
either using the TCM hard copy document as a guide, or implementing their own processes. Reporting
on these discussions has not been captured to date. DPC Performs is a project which will determine the
best performance management approach moving forward, and should result in implementation by
January 2011. DPC ensures that discussions are happening regardless of what systems are being used.
Individual Deputy Chief Executives ensure that performance management reviews are taking place within
their portfolios.

VOLUNTARY FLEXIBLE WORKING ARRANGEMENTS BY GENDER

Male Female Total
Purchased Leave 1 8 9
Flexitime 374 602 976
Compressed Weeks 9 19 28
Part-time 37 181 218
Job Share 2 39 41
Working from Home 5 12 17

Note: Employees may be undertaking more than one type of Flexible Working Arrangement at the same time. In this
way, the total is unlikely to add to 100%.

LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT TRAINING EXPENDITURE

Training and Development Total Cost UL Ly

g P S * Expenditure
Total training and development expenditure 702 306 0.66
Total leadership and management 59011 056

development expenditure

*T&D Total Expenditure figures are expected to increase for 09/10. This can be attributed in a delay in
Training and Development data being entered on to the CHRIS System
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ACCREDITED TRAINING PACKAGES BY CLASSIFICATION

Classification

ASO2
ASO4
ASO5
ASO7
ASO8
OPS3
PO1
PO3
PO5

Number of Accredited Training
Packages

PR W N R NN R R
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Occupational Health, Safety and Injury Management

OHS NOTICES AND CORRECTIVE ACTION TAKEN

Number of notifiable occurrences pursuant to OHS&W Regulations Division 6.6

Number of notifiable injuries pursuant to OHS&W Regulations Division 6.6

Number of notices served pursuant to OHS&W Act s35, s39 and s40 (default,
improvement and prohibition notices)

AGENCY GROSS" WORKERS COMPENSATION EXPENDITURE FOR 2009-10 COMPARED WITH

2008-09
2009-10 2008-09 Variation % Change

EXPENDITURE ($) ($) ($)+(-) +(-)
Income Maintenance 270762.35 325437.8 -54 675.45 -16.8
Lump Sum
Settlements
Redemptions - Sect.42 46 700 186 722.9 -140 022.90 -75
Lump Sum
Settlements
Permanent Disability —
Sect. 43 182 305.22 281 803.5 -99 498.28 -35.3
Medical/Hospital
Costs combined 205 899.93 192 926.6 +12 973.33 +6.7
Other 10 041.95 85935.9 -75 893.95 -88.3
Total Claims
Expenditure 715709.45 1072 826.7 -357 117.25 33.3%

Reductions have occurred in all expense areas, except medical/hospital cost.

An increase in medical/hospital cost is due to a combination of increased cost of medical services and an
increased number of claims requiring surgery and intensive medical treatment. While FY08/09 saw an
increase in total claim expenditure, total claim expenditure for FY09/10 is lower than 07/08. DPC income
maintenance costs continue to downward trend from 07/08.

1 before 3rd party recovery
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MEETING SAFTETY PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Base: Performance: 12 months to end of | Final

2005-06 June 2010 Target

Numbers or % | Actual Notional Variation | Numbers or %

Quarterly
Target
1. Workplace Fatalities 0 0 0 0 0
2. New Workplace Injury Claims 25 38 20 18 20
3. New Workplace Injury Claims 10.8 18 10 8 8.63
Frequency Rate
4. Lost Time Injury Frequency 4.7 4.3 3.8 0.5 3.80
Rate ***
5. New Psychological Injury 3 0 3 -3 2
Claims
6. Rehabilitation and Return to Work:
6a. Early Assessment within 2 24% 63.2% 80% -16.8 | 80% or more
days
6b. Early Intervention within 5 67% 100% 80% 20 | 80% or more
days
6c. RTW within 5 business days 87% 78.6% 75% 3.6 | 75% or more
7. Claim Determination:
7a. Claims determined in 10 32% 51.5% 75% -23.5 75% or more
business days
7b. Claims still to be determined 8% 12.1% 3% 9.15 3% or less
after 3 months
8. Income Maintenance Payments for Recent Injuries:
2008-09 Injuries (at 24 months $121,000 | $159,000 -38,000 | Below
development) previous 2
years average

2009-10 Injuries (at 12 months $38,000 $46,000 -8,000 | Below
development) previous 2

years average

*  Except for Target 8, which is YTD. For Targets 5, 6¢, 7a and 7b, performance is measured up to the
previous quarter to allow reporting lag.

** Based on cumulative reduction from base at a constant quarterly figure.

***| ost Time Injury Frequency Rate Injury frequency rate for new lost-time injury/disease for each one million
hours worked. This frequency rate is calculated for benchmarking and is used by the WorkCover Corporation.

Formula for Lost Time Injury frequency rate (new claims):
Number of new cases of lost-time injury/disease for year x 1,000,000

Number of hours worked in the year

While DPC has experienced an increase in the number of new claims it is important to note that this has not
resulted in an increase in income maintenance nor total claim expenditure. Additionally DPC also has had a

number of new hearing claims submitted from ex-employees of abolished agencies. This impacts both the new

claims number and the new claim frequency rate.
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A slight increase has been experienced in DPC lost time frequency rate (LTIFR). Given the size of the DPC it is
important to note one lost time injury can significantly impact the LTIFR.

A significant turnaround has occurred in the number of new psychological injuries, which have fallen from six
in 2008-09 to nil in 2009-10. The early intervention strategies developed and implemented have demonstrated
an effective outcome with no new claims for 2009-10.

DPC has achieved an improvement of 39.2% of new claims being assessed for early rehabilitation within two
business days of a supervisor/manager being advised of an injury, while not yet reaching the target of 80% or
more. Review of the data shows a lag in reporting from Agencies manager/supervisor to Injury Management
Services. The implementation, during 2010-11, of an on-line incident reporting system will assist DPC to meet
this target in future.
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Financial Overview

This section provides a summary of the department’s actual results compared with the department’s final
revised budget for the 2009-10 financial year. A full suite of the department’s financial statements for 2009-10

is presented later in this report.

Statement of Comprehensive Income ($000s)

2009-10 2009-10 2008-09

Budget Actual Variation Actual

Expenses (309 053) (304 322) 4731 (299 372)
Revenues 60429 52922 (7 507) 49 538
Net cost of providing services (248 624) (251 400) (2776) (249 834)
Revenues from SA Government 245 186 245 185 (1) 280 101
Net result (3 438) (6 215) (2777) 30 267

The department’s 2009-10 net result of $6.2 million deficit is $2.8 million higher than budget. This variation is

primarily due to:

e Expenses arising from the finalisation of negotiations to determine the State’s obligation under the
Commonwealth Copyright Act 1968 for copyrighted material copied by State Government agencies.
e Adecrease in the fair value of assets resulting from the demolition of buildings on the Glenside

Adelaide Film and Screen Centre site.

e Implementation expenditure associated with the State Government’s new high risk work licensing

system.

The higher than budgeted net result was partially offset by lower than anticipated employee entitlements
mainly as a result of vacancies throughout the year.

Statement of Financial Position ($000s)

2009-10 2009-10 2008-09

Budget Actual Variation Actual

Current assets 40 059 42 686 2 627 44 378
Non-current assets 123 974 127 553 3579 113 338
Total assets 164 033 170 239 6 206 157 716
Current liabilities (23 223) (25 023) (1 800) (22 462)
Non-current liabilities (15 325) (17 639) (2314) (16 794)
Total liabilities (38 548) (42 662) (4 114) (39 256)
Net assets 125 485 127 577 2092 118 460
Equity (125 485) (127 577) (2 092) (118 460)

The department’s net assets at 30 June 2010 were $2.1 million higher than budgeted, primarily due to a higher
than estimated fair value of property purchased for the construction of the Adelaide Film and Screen Centre.
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Accounts Payable

All agencies are required to report monthly on the number and value of creditors’ accounts paid and the
extent to which the accounts have been paid in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 11. This instruction
requires all undisputed accounts to be paid within 30 days of the receipt of the invoice or claim unless a

specific due date applies.

The following table reports the department’s payment performance for 2009-10.

Account payment performance 2009-10

Particulars

Number of
Accounts Paid

Percentage of
Accounts Paid

Value in SA
of Accounts Paid

Percentage of

Accounts Paid

(by number) (by value)
Paid by due date* 24 201 85% 195312 942 85%
Paid late but paid within 30 3552 13% 31421868 14%
days of due date
Paid more than 30 days 643 2% 3254 865 1%
from due date
Total accounts paid 28 396 100% 229 989 675 100%

* The due date is defined in section 11.7 of Treasurer’s Instruction 11. Generally, unless there is a discount or written
agreement between the public authority and the creditor, payment should be within 30 days of the date of the invoice or

claim

The table above shows that the department was able to pay 85% of all invoices by the specified due date. The
remaining 15% of invoices reflects both disputed accounts and late payment of undisputed accounts. The
acceptable best practice benchmark is to pay 90% of accounts within 30 days. Performance in 2009-10 was 5%

below this benchmark.

Fraud

The department is committed to maintaining a working environment free of fraud and corrupt behaviour. A
formal policy is in place documenting the process to be followed in the event that fraud or corruption is
suspected or detected. The department offers protection to genuine whistleblowers to enable disclosure of
illegal activities or corruption to be made. During the 2009-10 financial year no instances of fraud were

identified in the department.
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v ,Céi'tiifi‘c'atio;lof_ther Fmanual Stzitementt‘sr .

We certify that the attached general purpose financial statements for the Department of the Premier and Cabinet:
o comply with relevant Treasurer's Instructions issued under Section 41 of the Public Finance and Audit Act
1987 , and relevant Australian Accounting Standards ;

e are in accordance with the accounts and records of the department; and
e present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet as at

30 June 2010 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the financial yeat.

We certify that the internal controls employed by the Department of the Premier and Cabinet for the financial
year over its financial reporting and its preparation of the general purpose financial statements have been
effective throughout the reporting period. ‘

© Chrls Ec¥les Bret Moitis
Chief Executive Executive Director
' Services Division
29 | “
Sep 2010 , 2T Sep 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ZoUz . Government of South Australia
; Auditor-General's Department

9th Floor

State Administration Centre
200 Victoria Square
Adelaide SA 5000

DX 56208
Victoria Square

Tel  +618 8226 9640
Fax +618 8226 9688

ABN 53327 061 410

To the Chief Executive audgensa@audit.sa.gov.au
Department of the Premier and Cabinet wwwi.audit.sa.gov.au

As required by section 31 of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, 1 have audited the accompanying
financial statements of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet for the financial year ended
30 June 2010. The financial statements comprise:

A Statement of Comprehensive Income

A Statement of Financial Position

A Statement of Changes in Equity

A Statement of Cash Flows

Disaggregated Disclosures - Expenses and Income
Disaggregated Disclosures - Assets and Liabilities
Notes to the Financial Statements

A Statement of Administered Comprehensive Income
A Statement of Administered Financial Position

A Statement of Administered Changes in Equity

A Statement of Administered Cash Flows

Notes to the Administered Financial Statements

A Certificate from the Chief Executive and the Executive Director, Services Division.

The responsibility of the Chief Executive for the financial statements

The Chief Executive is responsible for the preparation and the fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions promulgated under the provisions of the
Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and Australian Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. .

Auditor’s responsibility

. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and
Australian Auditing Standards. The Auditing Standards require that the auditor complies with relevant
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plans and performs the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Chief Executive,
as well as the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
auditor’s opinion,
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Auditor’s opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Department of the Premier and Cabinet as at 30 June 2010, its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions promulgated under the
provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and Australian Accounting Standards. -

A3
A > WS
S O'Neill
AUDITOR-GENERAL
30 September 2010
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010

Note 2010 2009
$'000 $'000

Epenses |
Employee benefits 6 91122 83399
Supplies and services 7 64 442 58 852
Grants and subsidies 8 141 095 142 291
Depreciation and amortisation 9 6022 6792
Borrowing costs - 79
Net loss from disposal of non-current assets 10 1093 -
Other expenses 11 548 7 959
Total expenses 304 322 299 372

ncome _________________________
Fees and charges 13 27 040 27 438
Commonwealth revenues 14 1942 1698
Grants 15 21299 16 090
Interest 19 26 37
Resources received free of charge 16 12 221
Community Development Fund 900 900
Recoveries from administered items 455 1159
Net gain from disposal of non-current assets 10 - 6
Other income 17 1248 1989
Total income 52922 49 538
Net cost of providing services 251 400 249 834
Revenues from SA Government 18 247 421 289 441
Payments to SA Government 18 2236 9340
Total revenues from SA Government 245 185 280 101
Net result (6 215) 30 267
Total comprehensive result (6 215) 30 267

The net result and comprehensive result are attributable to the SA Government as owner

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Statement of Financial Position

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010

Note 2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 19 34 280 31838
Receivables 20 8388 12 513
Inventories 18 27
Total current assets 42 686 44 378
Receivables 20 225 300
Property, plant and equipment 21 122 262 108 198
Works of art 21 4 698 4 686
Intangible assets 22 368 154
Total non-current assets 127 553 113 338
Total assets 170 239 157 716
Payables 23 13594 11 819
Employee benefits 24 10 313 9 604
Provisions 25 873 898
Other liabilities 26 243 70
Total current liabilities 25023 22391
Payables 23 1328 1289
Employee benefits 24 13398 12 938
Provisions 25 2839 2567
Other liabilities 26 74 71
Total non-current liabilities 17 639 16 865
Total liabilities 42 662 39 256
Net assets 127 577 118 460
Contributed capital 25 899 15 435
Asset revaluation surplus 14 544 14 544
Retained earnings 87134 88 481
Total equity 127577 118 460
The total equity is attributable to the SA Government as owner
Unrecognised contractual commitments 27
Contingent assets and liabilities 28

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010

Contributed Asset Retained Total
capital revaluation earnings
surplus
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2008 10016 37 317 160929/ 208 262
Total comprehensive result for 2008-09 - - 30 267 30 267
Transactions with SA Government as owner
Asset revaluation surplus taken to equity - (22 773) 22773 -
Equity contribution from the State Government 5419 - - 5419
Net assets transferred out as a result of an - - (125488) (125488)
administrative restructure
Balance as at 30 June 2009 15435 14 544 88481 118 460
Net result for 2009-10 - - (6 215) (6 215)
Total Comprehensive result for 2009-10 - - (6 215) (6 215)
Transactions with SA Government as owner
Equity contribution from the State Government 27 845 - - 27 845
Equity distribution to the State Government (17 381) - - (17 381)
Assets transferred to the Department 2.13 - - 4 868 4 868
Balance at 30 June 2010 25899 14 544 87134 127577

All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.

35 of 124



Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010

Note 2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Cash outflows
Employee benefits (88 447) (83 790)
Supplies and services (60 704) (57 914)
Grants and subsidies (142 146) (141 916)
Borrowing costs - (79)
GST paid to the Australian Taxation Office (18 319) (17 266)
Other payments (415) (42 942)
Cash used in operations (310 031) (343 907)
Cash inflows
Fees and charges 29 745 23721
Commonwealth revenues 1957 1667
Grants 19 486 17 832
Interest received 24 35
Community Development Fund 900 900
Recoveries from administered items 455 1159
GST recovered from the Australian Taxation Office 18 319 17 266
Other receipts 1262 3003
Cash generated from operations 72148 65 583
Receipts from SA Government: 247 421 289 441
Payments to SA Government: (2 236) (9 340)
Cash generated from SA Government 245 185 280 101
Net cash provided by operating activities 29 7 302 1777
Cash outflows
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (15 291) (9 953)
Purchase of intangible assets (34) (294)
Cash used in investing activities (15 325) (10 247)
Cash inflows
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1 6
Cash generated from investing activities 1 6
Net cash used in investing activities (15 324) (10 241)
Cash outflows
Loss from restructuring activities - (1 064)
Capital distribution to the State Government (17 381) -
Repayment of borrowings - (74)
Cash used in financing activities (17 381) (1138)
Cash inflows
Capital contribution from the State Government 27 845 5419
Cash generated from financing activites 27 845 5419
Net cash from financing activities 10 464 4281
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 2442 (4 183)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 31838 36 021
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 19 34 280 31838

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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DISAGGREGATED DISCLOSURES - EXPENSES AND INCOME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010

Activity 1 Activity 2 Activity 3 Activity 4 Activity 5 Activity 6 Activity 7 Activity 8 Activity 9  Activity  Activity Activity 12/ Activity 2010
10 11 13 Total
$'000
Expenses |
Employee benefits 6 469 2174 7047 423 2734 2268 19762 305 6 335 2163 4364 30967 6111 91122
Supplies and services 2462 1085 6623 575 1282 2113 13117 255 10331 487 5708 15074 5330 64 442
Grants and subsidies - 5 11821 30476, 24686 58435 9263 80 3551 81 3 2 691 3 141095
Depreciation and 272 4 4 - 11 4947 274 - 84 - 265 129 32 6 022
amortisation
Net loss from disposal of - - - - - 1109 (16) - - - - - - 1093
non-current assets
Other expenses - - - - 9 4 515 - 1 - 19 - - 548
Total expenses 9203 3268 25495 31474 28722 68876 42915 640 20302 2731 10359 48861 11476 304322
income _____|
Fees and charges 1588 601 406 1 661 4313 570 - 2747 35 2200 13131 787 27 040
Commonwealth 15 - 1107 - - 540 - - 280 - - - - 1942
Grants - - 1586 - - - 85 340 858 - - 10 766 7 664 21299
Interest - - - - - - 1 - 25 - - - - 26
Resources received free - - - - - 12 - - - - - - - 12
of charge
Community - - - - - 900 - - - - - - - 900
Development Fund
Recoveries from - - - - - - - - 455 - - - - 455
administered items
Other income 1 1 - 63 40 176 964 - 1 - - 2 - 1248
Total income 1604 602 3099 64 701 5941 1620 340 4366 35 2200 23 899 8451 52922
Net cost of providing 7599 2666 22396 31410 28021 62935 41295 300 15936 2696 8159 24 962 3025 251400
Revenues
Revenues from SA - - - 18078 29776 58489 141078 - - - - - - 247421
Payments to SA - - - - - - 2236 - - - - - - 2236
Total revenues - - - 18078 29776 58489 138842 - - - - - - 245185
Net result (7599) (2666) (22396) (13332) 1755 (4446) 97547 (300) (15936) (2696) (8159) (24962) (3025) (6 215)
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DISAGGREGATED DISCLOSURES - EXPENSES AND INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Activity 1 Activity 2 Activity 3  Activity 4 Activity 5 Activity 6/ Activity 7 Activity 8 Activity 9 Activity 10 Activity 11 Activity 12 Activity 13 2009
Total
$'000
Epenses |
Employee benefits 6121 1501 5714 451 2 840 2080 19 065 238 5616 2143 4285 27 837 5508 83399
Supplies and services 1300 823 7984 497 1454 1498 14 382 78 6827 934 3438 15656 3981 58 852
Grants and subsidies 127 - 15381 29 406 22 345 52078 11926 120 8543 - 2 2363 - 142 291
Depreciation and - - - - 4 4 861 1575 - - - 156 141 55 6792
amortisation
Borrowing costs - - - - - - 79 - - - - - - 79
Other expenses - - 19 - - - 7922 - 1 - - 17 - 7959
Total expenses 7548 2324 29 098 30 354 26 643 60 517 54 949 436 20987 3077 7 881 46 014 9544 299 372
come ____|
Fees and charges 1605 582 538 - 857 4133 1434 - 104 - 2 366 12 212 3607 27438
Commonwealth revenues - - 214 - - 474 151 - 859 - - - - 1698
Grants 106 - 416 - - - 395 293 254 - - 10 080 4 546 16 090
Interest - - - - - - 1 - 36 - - - - 37
Resources received free of - - - - - 121 - - 100 - - - - 221
charge
Community Development - - - - - 900 - - - - - - - 900
Fund
Recoveries from - - - - - - - - 1159 - - - - 1159
administered items
Net gain from disposal of - - - - - - 6 - - - - - - 6
non-current assets
Other income 1 2 - - 5 1387 551 - 5 - - 37 1 1989
Total income 1712 584 1168 - 862 7015 2538 293 2517 - 2 366 22329 8154 49538
Net cost of providing 5836 1740 27 930 30 354 25781 53 502 52 411 143 18470 3077 5515 23685 1390 249 834
Revenues from SA - - - - - 108338 181103 - - - - - - 289 441
Payments to SA - - - 626 1031 2025 5658 - - - - - - 9340
Total revenues - - - (626) (1031) 106313 175445 - - - - - - 280101
Net result (5 836) (1740) (27930) (30980) (26 812) 52811 123034 (143) (18470) (3077) (5515) (23 685) (1 390) 30 267
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DISAGGREGATED DISCLOSURES - ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010

Activity 1 Activity 2 Activity 3 Activity 4 Activity 5 Activity 6 Activity 7 Activity 8 Activity 9  Activity  Activity Activity 12/ Activity 2010
10 11 13 Total
$'000

N
Cash and cash - - - - 574 10591 23115 - - - - - - 34 280
Receivables 443 276 217 - 137 1124 1636 125 477 1 496 1068 2613 8613
Inventories - - - - - - - - - - 18 - - 18
Property, plant and a4 33 20 - 160 106449 4232 - 2232 - 1563 6144 1385 122262

equipment

Works of art - - - - - 4671 27 - - - - - - 4698
Intangible assets 207 - - - - - 14 - 13 - 127 7 - 368
Total assets 694 309 237 - 871 122835 29024 125 2722 1 2204 7219 3998 170239
Payables 362 92 1869 351 768 1011 3858 11 1031 139 2730 1914 786 14 922
Employee benefits 1712 528 1421 185 862 599 4283 94 1687 469 1336 8842 1693 23711
Provisions - - - 4 61 12 3019 - - - - 526 90 3712
Other liabilities - - - - 64 - - - - - 146 - 107 317
Total liabilities 2074 620 3290 540 1755 1622 11160 105 2718 608 4212 11 282 2676 42 662
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DISAGGREGATED DISCLOSURES - ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Activity 1 Activity 2 Activity 3  Activity 4| Activity 5 Activity 6 Activity 7 Activity 8 Activity 9 Activity 10 Activity 11 Activity 12 Activity 13 2009
Total
$'000
pssers |
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 267 7583 23988 - - - - - - 31838
Receivables 465 336 499 - 279 1699 4390 125 44 - 738 491 3747 12813
Inventories - - - - - - - - - - 27 - - 27
Property, plant and - - - - 72 95953 8484 - - - - 3613 76 108 198
equipment
Works of art - - - - - 4659 27 - - - - - - 4686
Intangible assets - - - - - - 125 - - - - 29 - 154
Total assets 465 336 499 - 618 1093894 37014 125 a4 - 765 4133 3823 157716
Payables 237 109 4384 227 504 733 3334 1 415 117 - 2595 452 13108
Employee benefits 141 41 120 177 790 570 7216 5 1387 476 1347 8751 1521 22542
Provisions - - - 4 52 11 3030 - - - - 272 96 3465
Other liabilities - - - - 6 - - - - - 44 - 91 141
Total liabilities 378 150 4504 408 1352 1314 13 580 6 1802 593 1391 11618 2160 39 256
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Note 1. Objectives of the Department of Premier and Cabinet

The Department of the Premier and Cabinet (the Department) is the principal government agency in South
Australia. It delivers specialist policy advice to the Premier and Ministers, supports the Cabinet process and
provides direction and leadership to the South Australian Public Service.

The Department leads the implementation of South Australia’s Strategic Plan, has overarching
responsibility for federal-state relations and drives key government initiatives across a range of services
benefiting other government agencies and the community.

The Department works closely with these groups to develop policies and deliver programs in the areas of
social inclusion, Aboriginal well-being, the arts, industrial relations, sustainability and climate change,
occupational health and safety, recreation and sport, and government records access and preservation.

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements. The accounts have been prepared in
accordance with relevant Australian Accounting Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions and Accounting
Policy Statements promulgated under the provision of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 .

Except for Australian Accounting Standard, AASB 2009-12 that the Department has early-adopted,
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are
not yet effective have not been adopted by the Department for the reporting period ended 30 June 2010.
These are outlined in Note 4.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The preparation of the financial statements requires:

. the use of certain accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Department’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are outlined in the applicable Notes;

. the selection and application of accounting policies in a manner that ensures that the resulting
financial information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or other events are reported; and

. compliance with Accounting Policy Statements issued pursuant to section 41 of the Public
Finance and Audit Act 1987 . In the interest of public accountability and transparency the
Accounting Policy Statements require the following Note disclosures, which have been included
in the financial statements:

a) income, expenses, financial assets and liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is
with an entity within the SA Government as at reporting date, classified according to their
nature. A threshold of $100 000 for separate identification of these items applies;

b) expensesincurred as a result of engaging consultants;
c) employee targeted voluntary separation package information;

d) employees whose normal remuneration is $100 000 or more (within $10 000 bandwidths)
and the aggregate of the remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available,
directly or indirectly, by the entity to those employees; and
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e) board/committee member and remuneration information, where a board/committee
member is entitled to receive income from membership other than a direct out-of-pocket
reimbursement.

The Department’s Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Changes in Equity have been prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost
convention, except for certain assets that were valued in accordance with the valuation policy applicable.

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared on a cash basis.

The financial statements have been prepared based on a twelve month operating cycle and are presented
in Australian currency.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2010 and comparative information presented for the year ended 30 June 2009.

2.3 Reporting entity

The Department is a government department of the State of South Australia established pursuant to the
Public Sector Act 2009 . The Department is an administrative unit acting on behalf of the Crown. The
financial statements and accompanying Notes encompass all the controlled activities of the Department.

Administered resources

The Department administers, but does not control, certain resources on behalf of the South Australian
Government. It is accountable for the transactions involving those administered resources, but does not
have the discretion to deploy the resources for achievement of the Department’s objectives. For these
resources, the Department acts only on behalf of the Commonwealth and South Australian governments.

Transactions and balances relating to these administered resources are not recognised as departmental
income, expense, assets and liabilities. As administered items are significant in relation to the
Department’s overall financial performance and position, they are disclosed in the administered financial
statements attached to the General Purpose Financial Statements. Except as otherwise disclosed,
administered items are recognised on the same basis and using the same accounting policies as for the
departmental items.

2.4 Comparative information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial statements are consistent with prior periods
except where specific accounting standards and/or accounting policy statements has required a change.

Where presentation or classification of items in the financial statements have been amended, comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation or classification in these financial
statements unless impracticable.

The restated comparative amounts do not replace the original financial statements for the preceding
period.

2.5 Rounding

All amounts in the financial statements and accompanying Notes have been rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars ($’000).
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2.6 Taxation
The Department is not subject to income tax. The Department is liable for payroll tax, fringe benefits tax,

goods and services tax, emergency services levy, land tax equivalents and local government rate
equivalents.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except that:

. the amount of GST incurred by the Department as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the
Australian Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of
an item of expense; and

. receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is included as part
of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash
flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
Australian Taxation Office, is classified as part of operating cash flows.

Unrecognised contractual commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to the Australian Taxation Office. If GST is not payable to, or recoverable
from the Australian Taxation Office, the commitments and contingencies are disclosed on a gross basis.

2.7 Income

Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the flow of economic benefits to the
Department will occur and can be reliably measured.

Income has been aggregated according to its nature and has not been offset unless required or permitted
by a specific accounting standard, or where offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction or other
event.

The following are specific recognition criteria:

Fees and Charges

Income from fees and charges is derived from goods and services provided to other SA Government
agencies and to the public. The revenue is recognised upon delivery of the service to the clients or by
reference to the stage of completion.

Grants

Grants are recognised as income when the Department obtains control of the income or when the
agreement or contract has been approved and executed or income received. Grants received by the
Department with unconditional stipulations attached have been recognised as an asset and income upon
receipt.

Resources received free of charge

Resources received free of charge from external parties are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income at their fair value. Contributions of services are recognised only when the fair value can be
determined reliably and the services would be purchased if they had not been donated.
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Revenues from SA Government

Appropriations for program funding are recognised as revenues when the Department obtains control over
the funding. Control over appropriations is normally obtained upon their receipt.

Where money has been appropriated in the form of equity contribution, the Treasurer has acquired a
financial interest in the net assets of the Department and the appropriation is recorded as contributed
equity.

In relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of the Department in its present form, and
with its present activities, is dependent on Government policy and on continuing appropriations for the
Department’s administration and activities.

Other income

Other income consists of donations, refunds and other recoveries.

2.8 Expenses

Expenses are recognised when and only when the flow or consumption or loss of future economic benefits
has occurred and can be reliably measured.

Expenses have been aggregated according to their nature and have not been offset unless required or
permitted by a specific accounting standard or where offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction
or other event.

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expenses includes all costs related to employment including wages and salaries, non-
monetary benefits and leave entitlements. These are recognised when incurred.

Superannuation

The amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income represents contributions made by the
Department to the superannuation plan in respect of current services of current departmental staff. The
Department of Treasury and Finance centrally recognises the superannuation liability, for schemes
operated by the State Government, in the whole-of-government financial statements.

Grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies that the Department pays to other entities for general assistance or a particular
purpose may be for capital or recurrent purposes and the name of the category reflects the use of the
grant or subsidy. These entities may be other SA Government agencies, Non-Government Organisations or
the public. The grants and subsidies given are usually subject to terms and conditions set out in the
contract, correspondence, or by legislation. For contributions payable, the contribution will be recognised
as a liability and expense when the Department has a present obligation to pay the contribution.

Grants and subsidies paid by the Department generally have conditional stipulations attached.

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are systematically depreciated/amortised over their
useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their service potential. Amortisation is used in
relation to intangible assets, while depreciation is applied to physical assets such as property, plant and
equipment.

The useful lives of all major assets held by the Department are reassessed on an annual basis.

The value of leasehold improvements is amortised over the estimated useful life of each improvement, or
the unexpired period of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter.
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Land and non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Depreciation/amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the
following classes of assets:

Class of Asset Useful Life (Years)
Buildings and improvements 10to 40
Transportable accommodation 10to 20
Furniture and fittings 5to 15
Office Equipment 3to5
IT Equipment 3to5
Motor vehicles 5
Intangibles - Computer Software 3to5

Works of Art controlled by the Department are anticipated to have very long and indeterminate useful
lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period.
Consequently, no amount for depreciation has been recognised for this class of asset.

Net loss on non-current assets

A loss from the disposal of non-current assets is recognised when control of the asset has passed to the
buyer and determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. When re-valued assets are sold, the
revaluation increments are transferred to retained earnings.

Resources provided free of charge

Resources provided free of charge to external parties are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income at their fair value and in the expense line to which they relate.

Payments to SA Government

Payments to the SA Government include the return of surplus cash pursuant to the government’s cash
alignment policy, paid directly to the Consolidated Account.

2.9 Current and non-current classification

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. The Department has a
clearly identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Therefore, assets and liabilities that will be sold,
consumed or realised as part of the normal operating cycle will be classified as current assets or current
liabilities. All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Where asset and liability line items combine amounts expected to be realised within twelve month and
more than twelve month, the Department has separately disclosed the amounts expected to be recovered
or settled after more than twelve month.

2.10 Assets

Assets have been classified according to their nature and have not been offset unless required or
permitted by a specific accounting standard or where offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction
or other event.

Where an asset line item combines amounts expected to be settled within twelve month and more than
twelve month, the Department has separately disclosed the amounts expected to be recovered after more
than twelve month.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as reported in the Statement of Financial Position includes cash on hand and
deposits held at call. Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise cash and cash
equivalents as defined above. Cash is measured at nominal value.

Receivables

Receivables include amounts receivable from goods and services, prepayments and other accruals.

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to other government agencies
and to the public. Trade receivables are generally settled within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or the
goods/services have been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Other debtors arise outside the normal course of selling goods and services to other government agencies
and to the public. If payment has not been received within 90 days after the amount falls due, under the
terms and conditions of the arrangement with the debtor, the Department is able to charge interest at
commercial rates until the whole amount of the debt is paid.

The Department determines the allowance for doubtful debts based on a review of balances within trade
receivables that are unlikely to be collected. These are generally receivables that are 90 days or more
overdue. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or their net realisable value.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset’s sale
is expected to be completed one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Non-current asset acquisition and recognition

Non—current assets are initially recorded at cost or at the value of any liabilities assumed, plus any
incidental cost involved with the acquisition. Non-current assets are subsequently measured at fair value
less accumulated depreciation.

Where assets are acquired at no value, or minimal value, they are recorded at their fair value in the
Statement of Financial Position. However, if the assets are acquired at no or nominal value as part of a
restructuring of administrative arrangements then the assets are recorded at the value recorded by the
transferor authority immediately before transfer.

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework Ill Asset Accounting Framework APS 2.15:

. all non-current tangible assets with a value of $10 000 or greater are capitalised; and

. componentisation of complex assets is only performed when the complex asset’s fair value at
the time of acquisition is greater than $5 million for infrastructure assets and $1 million for
other assets.

Revaluation of non-current assets

All non-current physical assets are valued at written down current cost (a proxy for fair value). Revaluation
of non-current assets or groups of assets is performed when their fair value at the time of acquisition is
greater than $1 million and estimated useful life is greater than 3 years.
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Every 5 years, the Department revalues its land and buildings. However, if at any time management
considers that the carrying amount of the asset materially differs from the fair value, then the asset will be
revalued regardless of when the last valuation took place. Non-current physical assets that are acquired
between revaluations are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are re-valued to fair value.

Valuations of departmental buildings and improvements held for cultural purposes were determined as at
30 June 2008 by the Australian Valuation Office. These buildings and improvements have been valued
using a fair value methodology.

Any revaluation increment is credited to the asset revaluation surplus except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrement of the same asset class previously recognised as an expense, in which case the
increment is recognised as income. Any revaluation decrement is recognised as an expense, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation increment for the same asset class, in which case the decrement is
debited directly to the asset revaluation surplus to the extent of the credit balance existing in the asset
revaluation surplus for that class of asset.

Any accumulated depreciation as at revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amounts of
the assets and the net amounts are restated to the re-valued amounts of the asset.

Upon disposal or derecognition, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is transferred to retained
earnings.

Impairment of assets

All non-current tangible and intangible assets are tested for indication of impairment at each reporting
date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. An amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

For revalued assets, an impairment loss is offset against the respective class in the asset revaluation
surplus.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets are
measured at cost. Following initial recognition in the financial records, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The acquisition or internal development of software is capitalised when the expenditure meets the asset
definition criteria (identifiability, control, and the existence of future economic benefits) and the asset
recognition criteria (probability of future economic benefit and cost can be reliably measured) and when
the amount of expenditure is greater than or equal to $10 000.

All research and development costs that do not meet the capitalisation criteria outlined in AASB 138 are
expensed. Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets has not been capitalised.

211 Liabilities

Liabilities have been classified according to their nature and have not been offset unless required or
permitted by a specific accounting standard or where offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction
or other event.

Where a liability line item combines amounts expected to be settled within twelve month and more than
twelve month, the Department has separately disclosed the amounts expected to be settled after more
than twelve month.
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The Notes to the financial statements disclose financial liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is
with another SA Government entity as at the reporting date, classified according to their nature.

Payables

Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received before the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of the Department.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are
unpaid at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been processed.

All amounts are measured at their nominal amount and are normally settled within 30 days after the
Department receives an invoice.

Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions, and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

The Department makes contributions to several State Government and externally managed
superannuation schemes. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no
liability for payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the respective superannuation
schemes. The only liability outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid to
the South Australian Superannuation Board. The Department of Treasury and Finance centrally recognises
the superannuation liability, for schemes operated by the State Government, in the whole-of-government
financial statements.

Employee benefits

These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date but yet to be
paid. Long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value and short-term employee benefits
are measured at nominal amounts.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries and wages

Liabilities for salaries and wages are recognised, and are measured as the amount unpaid at the
reporting date at current pay rates in respect of employees’ services up to that date.

Annual Leave

A liability for annual leave is calculated by determining the amount unpaid at the reporting date
and estimating the nominal amount that is expected to be paid when the obligation is settled. In
the unusual event where annual leave is payable later than twelve month, the liability will be
measured at present value.

Employment on-costs

Employment on-costs (payroll tax, superannuation and workers compensation are recognised
separately under payables and provisions.

Long service leave

A liability for long service leave is recognised for all employees who have completed 5.5 (6.5
years) or more years of service. The 5.5 years has been based on an actuarial calculation
undertaken by the Department of Treasury and Finance. The calculation was based on a
significant sample of employees throughout the South Australian public sector and determined
that the liability measured using the short hand method was not materially different from the
liability measured using the present value of expected future payments. This calculation is
consistent with the Department’s experience of employee retention and leave taken.
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No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick
leave taken in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of
sick leave.

Workers compensation provision

The Department is an exempt employer under the Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 1986 .
Under a scheme arrangement, the Department is responsible for the management of workers
rehabilitation and compensation.

A liability has been reported to reflect unsettled workers compensation claims. The workers compensation
provision is based on an annual actuarial assessment as at 30 June performed by the consulting actuaries
to the Public Sector Workforce Relations Division of the Department. The workers compensation provision
liability recognised for the employees of the Department is based on an apportionment of an actuarial
assessment of the whole-of-government workers compensation liability conducted by Taylor Fry
Consulting Actuaries.

The actuarial assessment conducted by Taylor Fry Consulting Actuaries is based on the Payment Per Claim
Incurred (PPCI) valuation method. The assessment has been conducted in accordance withAASB 137
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the WorkCover Guidelines for Actuarial
Assessments. The liability covers claims incurred but not yet paid, incurred but not reported and the
anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling those claims. The liability for outstanding claims is
measured as the present value of the expected future payments reflecting the fact that all the claims do
not have to be paid out in the immediate future.

2.12 Contributed/ distributed capital

Where the investing activities of the Department are not funded through appropriations, operating
receipts, proceeds of assets sales or grants, government funding is provided via a capital contribution. The
Department received $27.8 million ($5.4 million) in 2009-10.

Capital distributed include the return of surplus cash pursuant to the government’s cash alignment policy,
paid directly to the Consolidated Account.Where agencies have equity contributions from the Treasurer,
part or all transfers of cash may be deemed a return of equity. The Department returned $17.4 million in
2009-10 that was deemed a return of equity.

2.13 Assets transferred to the Department

The Department acquired land and buildings from the Department of Health in 2009-10 as part of the
Adelaide Film and Screen Centre development project. The Department paid a nominal value for the land
and buildings. The remaining value was recognised as assets transferred in from the Department of Health.

2.14 Leases

The Department as lessee

The Department has entered into a number of operating lease agreements for buildings, motor vehicles
and office equipment where the lessors effectively retain all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the items held under the operating leases. Operating lease payments are representative of
the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and accordingly are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the periods in which they are incurred.

The Department as lessor

The Department leases the Adelaide Festival Centre and Her Majesty’s Theatre to the Adelaide Festival
Centre Trust through an operating lease.

Income from operating leases is recognised as rental income in the period incurred, and is representative
of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.
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2.15 Unrecognised contractual commitments and contingent assets and liabilities

Commitments include those operating, capital and outsourcing commitments arising from contractual or
statutory sources and are disclosed at their nominal value.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, but are disclosed
by way of a Note and, if quantifiable, are measured at their nominal value.

Note 3. Hedging arrangements

In accordance with government policy, the Department enters into hedges for all contracted expenditure
in a foreign currency over AUD $100 000. The South Australian Government Financing Authority (SAFA)
manages the foreign currency hedges on the Department’s behalf.

The Department did not have any outstanding hedges at 30 June 2010.

Note 4. New and revised accounting standards

Except for AASB 2009-12, which the Department has early-adopted, the Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective, have not been
adopted by the Department for the period ending 30 June 2010. The Department has assessed the impact
of the new and amended standards and Interpretations and considers there will be no impact on the
accounting policies or the financial statements of the Department.

Note 5. Activities of the Department

Activities are defined as goods or services produced, provided to or acquired for external customers. The
Department has identified thirteen major classes of activities that it delivers to the community and the
Premier. The identity and description of each major activity class for the Department during the year
ended 30 June 2010 are summarised below (refer to the Department’s Disaggregated Disclosures Expenses
and Income, and Assets and Liabilities).

Activity 1 — Cabinet Office

Coordination and leadership of across government policy proposals for the Premier’s and Cabinet’s
consideration; oversight of implementation of South Australia’s Strategic Plan in government and the
wider community; support to the Premier in intergovernmental relations; and provision of support to
Cabinet and its committees.

Activity 2 — Ethical Standards and Professional Integrity

Provision of leadership for South Australia’s Strategic Plan targets relating to the public sector workforce.
This is achieved by developing and implementing whole of government frameworks, strategies, programs
and services and supporting the Commissioner for Public Employment to meet his statutory
responsibilities.

Activity 3 — Strategic Policy Initiatives
Provision of high-level support for strategic policy initiatives of the government.
Activity 4 - Library and Information Services

Provision of information from library and resource centres to the public, industry and government
agencies and funding of services provided by Public Library Services to public libraries.

Activity 5 - Access to Art, Museum and Heritage Services and Preservation of State Collections

Provision of museum, visual arts and preservation services that enable the State’s cultural, heritage and
arts assets to be maintained and kept accessible to the community.

Activity 6 - Arts Industry Development and Access to Artistic Product

Provision of services that enhance opportunities for artists, cultural tourism, festivals and events and
provide for productions, exhibitions, tours and events to the community.
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Activity 7 — Support Services

Provision of corporate services to the Department, a range of support services to the Premier’s Office and
protocol advice to the Premier, Ministers, government agencies, private organisations and the public.

Activity 8 — Capital City

Support the Capital City Committee, a legislated partnership between the Adelaide City Council and the
Government of South Australia, by providing executive support to the committee and ensuring
coordination between the strategic objectives of the State and the Council to identify opportunities for the
City of Adelaide.

Activity 9 — Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation

Provision of leadership in Aboriginal policy and program development, coordination and implementation
of policies for Aboriginal affairs; monitoring the impact of government services on the wellbeing of
Aboriginal families and communities in South Australia; protection and preservation of Aboriginal heritage
and culture; facilitation of community development initiatives; provision and maintenance of essential
services and infrastructure on Aboriginal Land Holding communities; support for the state’s Aboriginal
Land Holding Authorities; and leadership of, and contribution to, special government and strategic
intervention projects.

Activity 10 — Public Sector Performance Commission

Provision of leadership to the revitalisation and reform of the public sector.

Activity 11 — Community Services

Provision of specialised services, support, information and policy to the community, government, industry
and the Minister in the areas of records management, archives and government publishing.

Activity 12 — Industrial Relations

Provision of workplace industrial relations, safety advisory and regulatory services to the general
community and the public sector.

Activity 13 — Employee Advocacy

Provision of services to ensure the rights and obligations of employees and employers are protected and
the relevant law applied to prevent and resolve workplace disputes.
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Note 6. Employee benefits

2010 2009

$'000 $'000
Salaries and wages 62 524 61537
Long service leave 3433 2158
Annual leave 5172 5261
Employment on-costs - superannuation 8194 8 652
Employment on-costs - other 4027 3838
Targeted voluntary separation packages (refer below) 4420 -
Board and committees fees 733 537
Other employment related expenses 2619 1416
Total employee benefits 91122 83 399
Targeted voluntary separation packages 2010 2009

$'000 $'000
Amount paid to these employees: -
TVSPs 4420 -
Annual leave and long service leave paid during the reporting period 1310 -

5730 -
Recovery from the Department of Treasury and Finance 4429 -
Net cost to the Department 1301 -
Number of employees who received a TVSP during the reporting period 41 -

Remuneration of employees

The table below includes employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year paid by the
Department. Remuneration of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation
contributions, fringe benefits tax and any other salary sacrifice benefits. Termination payments have been included if
employees meet the $100 000 threshold. In 2009-10, 57 employees met the $100 000 threshold for the first time.

The total remuneration received by employees listed in the table below, for the year was $25.1 million ($19.9 million).

The table includes the TVSP component paid where the employee meets the $100 000 threshold on normal remuneration.
In 2009-10, 4 employees included in the table received a TVSP.

The number of employees who received remuneration of $100,000 or more during the year, falls within the following bands:

2010 2009
$100 000 - $109 999 56 56
$110000 - $119 999 21 21
$120000 - $129 999 17 13
$130000 - $139 999
$140 000 - $149 999
$150 000 - $159 999
$160 000 - $169 999
$170000 - $179 999
$180 000 - $189 999
$190 000 - $199 999
$200 000 - $209 999
$210000 - $219 999
$220 000 - $229 999
$230 000 - $239 999
$240 000 - $249 999
$250 000 - $259 999
$260 000 - $269 999
$270 000 - $279 999
$280 000 - $289 999

-
S
-
P U R R R WN WO R

B R R 0NN W NN B O oo

P NN W R

53 of 124



Department of the Premier and Cabinet

$290 000 - $299 999 2 2
$310000 - $319 999 1 -
$320000 - $329 999 - 1
$350 000 - $359 999 - 1
$360 000 - $369 999 -
$400 000 - $409 999 1 -
Total number of employees 170 141
2010 2009
Supplies and services provided by entities within the SA Government $'000 $'000
Accommodation 8834 8 666
Telecommunication 814 827
Staff development and recruitment 85 87
General administration and consumables 2618 2351
Promotion and marketing 475 500
Repairs, maintenance and minor equipment purchases 1060 1196
Service level agreements 6372 5881
IT and computing charges 1441 1412
Community infrastructure 1986 2164
Projects 1208 2 650
Other supplies and services 2452 2338
Total supplies and services — SA Government 27 345 28072
Supplies and services provided by entities external to SA Government
Accommodation 1613 1939
Telecommunication 488 574
Staff development and recruitment 1672 1837
General administration and consumables 8501 4840
Promotion and marketing 4118 5544
Repairs, maintenance and minor equipment purchases 1034 1220
IT and computing charges 2 882 2730
Contractors and consultants 6783 4608
Cost of goods sold 353 498
Temporary and casual staff 1746 1680
Community infrastructure 5007 2189
Projects 1039 2041
Other supplies and services 1861 1080
Total supplies and services — Non SA Government 37 097 30780
Total supplies and services 64 442 58 852
The number and dollar amount of consultants paid/payable (included in supplies and services) that fell within the following
bands:
2010 2010 2009 2009

No $'000 No $'000
Below $10,000 47 160 39 128
Between $10,000 and $50,000 33 772 31 741
Above $50,000 13 1390 10 915
Total number of consultants engaged 93 2322 80 1784
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Note 8. Grants and subsidies

2010 2009
Grants and subsidies paid/payable to entities within the SA Government $'000 $'000
Recurrent grant 98 796 98 523
Total grants and subsidies — SA Government entities 98 796 98 523
Grants and subsidies paid/payable to entities external to the SA Government
Recurrent grant 42 299 43768
Total grants and subsidies — Non-SA Government entities 42 299 43 768
Total grants and subsidies 141 095 142 291
Grants and subsidies consists of the following: 2010 2009

$'000 $'000
Libraries Board of South Australia Operating Grant 29907 29 052
Adelaide Festival Centre Trust Operating Grant 14 437 13503
Museum Board Operating Grant 9303 11034
Art Gallery Board Operating Grant 7 861 5822
Country Arts SA Operating Grant 7377 5704
Arts Industry Assistance 7 307 6462
Adelaide Festival Corporation Operating Grant 6498 1997
South Australian Film Corporation Operating Grant 5814 5979
History Trust of South Australia Operating Grant 4 866 4606
University of South Australia 3080 20
The Australian Centre for Social Innovation 3000 850
Arts Project Assistance 2574 2713
South Australian Youth Arts Board Operating Grant 2490 2 356
State Theatre Company of South Australia Operating Grant 2 265 2 206
Aboriginal Community Assistance 1873 4231
Adelaide Symphony Orchestra Operating Grant 1867 2594
State Opera of South Australia Operating Grant 1536 1461
Adelaide Fringe Operating Grant 1417 1272
University of Adelaide 1393 230
Department of Health 1374 -
Anangu Pitjantjatjara Operating Grant 1326 1240
Wiltanendi Project 1215 350
Better Pathways 1064 -
Building Family Opportunities Program 1008 -
Children's Theatre Company (Windmill) Operating Grant 1000 1075
Workplace Partnership Programme 1000 1000
University College London 990 1689
Jam Factory of Contemporary Craft and Design Operating Grant 984 1069
Australian Dance Theatre Operating Grant 980 938
Timor Leste Basic Skills Training Project 948 -
International University Precinct Project 915 9405
Carrick Hill Trust Operating Grant 790 877
Tandanya Operating Grant 780 761
Funding for SA Aboriginal Sports Training Academy 769 -
Macquarie Capital Advisers Ltd 692 -
Safe Work Australia 658 -
SA Great 636 -
Building Innovation Fund Grant 497 310
Working Women's Centre SA Inc 365 365
Aboriginal Community Essential Services Assistance 344 2976
Premier's Community Initiatives 340 519
OHSW Commissioned Research Grants 192 -
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Occupational Health & Safety Grants 178 507
OHSW Australian Research Council Linkage Project Support Grants 150 -
Breaking the Cycle Program 43 564
Statewide Enhancement Program (StEP) - 6303
Active Club Program - 1266
Inclusive Recreation Inclusive Sport Program (IRIS) - 140
Other grants and subsidies 6992 8 845
Total grants and subsidies 141 095 142 291

Note 9. Depreciation and amortisation

2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Depreciation
Land, buildings and improvements 5187 5473
Plant and equipment 494 547
Recreation, sporting and stadia infrastructure - 711
Total depreciation 5681 6731
Amortisation
Intangible assets 341 61
Total amortisation 341 61
Total depreciation and amortisation 6 022 6792

Note 10. Net gain from disposal of assets

2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Land, buildings and improvements
Proceeds from disposal - -
Net book value of assets disposed (1109) -
Net (loss) from disposal of land, buildings and improvements (1109) -
Plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal 16 6
Net book value of assets disposed - -
Net gain from disposal of plant and equipment 16 6
Total assets
Proceeds from disposal 16 6
Net book value of assets disposed (1 109) -
Total net (loss) gain from disposal of non-current assets (1093) 6

Note 11. Other expenses

2010 2009
Other expenses paid/payable to entities within the SA Government $'000 $'000
Guarantees and indemnities - 7537
Other 93 -
Total other expenses — SA Government 93 7537
Other expenses paid/payable to entities external to the SA Government
Bad and doubtful debts 19 17
Other 436 405
Total other expenses — non-SA Government entities 455 422
Total other expenses 548 7 959
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Note 12. Auditor's remuneration

2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General's Department 187 179
Total audit fees 187 179

Other services
No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department.

Note 13. Fees and charges

2010 2009
Fees and charges received/receivable from entities within the SA Government $'000 $'000
Arts industry related fees 423 469
Salaries charged to other entities 1891 1713
Sale of goods 306 291
Regulatory fees 6521 6236
Fees for services 473 1762
Rental income 3949 3853
Other 3636 5233
Total fees and charges — SA Government entities 17 199 19 557
Fees and charges received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government
Arts industry related fees 535 636
Salaries charged to other entities 63 33
Sale of goods 1566 1999
Regulatory fees 3229 3145
Fees for services 1556 660
Rental income 182 251
Other 2710 1157
Total fees and charges — Non-SA Government entities 9841 7 881
Total fees and charges 27 040 27 438

Note 14. Commonwealth revenue

2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Commonwealth revenue 1942 1698
Total Commonwealth revenue 1942 1698

The Commonwealth revenue includes contributions for the East Timor Public Sector Capacity Development Program,
generator fuel, and governance training.

Note 15. Grants

2010 2009
Grants received/receivable from entities within the SA Government $'000 $'000
Recurrent grant 18 567 14 210
In-kind revenue 1230 1230
Sponsorship - -
Total grants — SA Government entities 19 797 15 440
Grants received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government
Recurrent grant 1502 615
Sponsorship - 35
Total grants — non-SA Government entities 1502 650
Total grants 21299 16 090

57 of 124



Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Note 16. Resources received free of charge

2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Donated assets 12 221
Total resources received free of charge 12 221

Note 17. Other income

2010 2009
Other income received/receivable from entities within the SA Government $'000 $'000
Other 501 1730
Total other income — SA Government entities 501 1730
Other income received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government
Other 747 259
Total other income — non-SA Government entities 747 259
Total other income 1248 1989

Note 18. Revenues from / payments to SA Government

2010 2009
Revenues from SA Government $'000 $'000
Appropriations from Consolidated Account pursuant to the Appropriation Act 247 421 289 281
Other revenue from SA Government - 160
Total revenues from SA Government 247 421 289 441
Payments to SA Government
Return of surplus cash pursuant to cash alignment policy (refer Note 2.8) 2236 9340
Total payments to SA Government 2236 9340
Total revenues from / payments to SA Government 245 185 280 101

Note 19. Cash and cash equivalents

2010 2009
$'000 $'000
Deposits at call 34223 31509
Deposits with the Treasurer - 273
Other short-term deposits 57 56
Total cash and cash equivalents 34 280 31838

Interest rate risk

Deposits at call includes funds held for the Aboriginal Heritage Fund which earns a floating interest rate based on daily bank

deposit rates. All other deposits at call are non-interest bearing.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents fair value.
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Note 20. Receivables

2010 2009

$'000 $'000
Current
Receivables 3512 5971
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (2) -
Prepayments 75 75
Accrued income 2788 1307
Loans 30 30
Less: allowance for doubtful loans (30) (30)
GST receivable 2015 5160
Total current receivables 8 388 12513
Non-current
Prepayments 225 300
Total non-current receivables 225 300
Total receivables 8613 12 813

2010 2009
Government / non-government receivables $'000 $'000
Receivables from SA Government entities
Receivables 1846 4370
Prepayments - 2
Accrued income 2629 1148
Total receivables from SA Government 4475 5520
Receivables from non-SA Government entities
Receivables 1666 1601
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (2) -
Prepayments 300 374
Accrued income 159 158
Loans 30 30
Less: allowance for doubtful loans (30) (30)
GST receivable 2015 5160
Total receivables from non-SA Government 4138 7293
Total receivables 8613 12 813

Interest rate and credit risk

Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received.

Receivables are normally settled within 30 days. Trade receivables, prepayments and accrued income are non-interest
bearing. Other than recognised in the allowance for doubtful debts, it is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to
discharge their obligations. The carrying amount of receivables approximates net fair value due to being receivable on
demand. In addition, there is no concentration of credit risk.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The allowance for doubtful debts (allowance for impairment loss) is recognised when there is objective evidence that a
receivable is impaired. An allowance for impairment loss has been recognised in Other Expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for specific debtors and debtors assessed on a collective basis for which such evidence exists.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts (impairment loss) are as follows: 2010 2009

$'000 $'000
Carrying amount at the beginning of the period - 35
Increase in allowance 2 -
Amounts transferred due to an administrative restructure - (35)
Carrying amount at the end of the period 2 -
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Note 21. Property, plant and equipment

Valuations of land and buildings

Valuations of departmental buildings and improvements held for cultural purposes were determined as at 30 June 2008 by the
Australian Valuation Office. Buildings and improvements have been valued using a fair value methodology.

All other non-current assets controlled by the Department have been deemed to be held at fair value.

Impairment
There were no indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets held at 30 June 2010.

2010 2009
Land, buildings and improvements $'000 $'000
Land at fair value 20945 15906
Buildings & improvements at fair value 190 406 183776
Accumulated depreciation (110177) (104 966)
Total land, buildings and improvements 101174 94 716
Plant and equipment $'000 $'000
Plant and equipment at fair value 12 219 11091
Accumulated depreciation (8399) (8379)
Total plant and equipment 3820 2712
Work in progress $'000 $'000
Work in progress at cost 17 268 10770
Total work in progress 17 268 10770
Total property, plant and equipment 122 262 108 198
Works of art $'000 $'000
Works of art at fair value 4698 4686
Total works of art 4698 4686

2010 2009

$'000 $'000
Computer software 1631 2042
Accumulated amortisation (1310) (1934)
Other intangibles 128 128
Accumulated amortisation (81) (82)
Total intangible assets 368 154
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